
 
CENTRAL OFFICE EASTERN OFFICE 
901 N. Stonewall 1627 Southwest Blvd. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73117 Tulsa, OK 74107 
Tel: (405) 239-7141 Tel: (918) 295-3400 
Fax: (405) 239-2430 Fax: (918) 585-1549 

 
 

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF MEDICAL EXAMINER 
BOARD OF MEDICOLEGAL INVESTIGATIONS 

 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

Thursday, February 1, 2024, 2:00 PM. 
921 N.E. 23rd Street, Oklahoma City, OK 73105 and Via videoconference at 1627 

Southwest Blvd., Tulsa OK 73117 
 

Dr. Michael Magguilli, Ms. Angela Marsee, Mr. Tyler Stiles, 
Mr. Keith Reed, and Dr. Eric Pfeifer will attend in Oklahoma City. 

Dr. Doug Stewart, Dr. Beaman, Ms. Angela Spurlock and Dr. Eric Harp will attend the meeting 
in Tulsa via videoconference. 

 

The Board may discuss, vote to approve, vote to disapprove, vote to table, or decide not to discuss any 
item on the agenda. 

 
I. Roll call 

 
II. Adoption of minutes from the November 2, 2023. 

 
III. Update from the Chief Medical Examiner 

♦ Agency update. 
 

IV. Update from Deputy Chief Medical Examiner 
♦ Tulsa office updates. 

 
V. New Business 

 
VI. Adjourn 



 
CENTRAL OFFICE                                                                                              EASTERN OFFICE 
921 N.E. 23rd Street                                                                                             1627 Southwest Blvd. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73105                                                                                             Tulsa, OK 74107 
Tel: (405) 239-7141                                                                                             Tel: (918) 295-3400 
Fax: (405) 239-2430                                                                                             Fax: (918) 585-1549 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE CHIEF MEDICAL EXAMINER 

BOARD OF MEDICOLEGAL INVESTIGATIONS 
 

1 
 

BOARD OF MEDICOLEGAL INVESTIGATIONS 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Board Meeting Minutes from 

Thursday November 2, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. 
1627 Southwest Blvd., Tulsa, OK 74117, 918-295-3400 

 
In conformity with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, advance notice of this meeting was transmitted to  

the Oklahoma Secretary of State on November 9, 2022, at 4:26 P.M. and public notice of this meeting, together 
with the agenda, was posted in prominent public view on the front door of the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner, 921 NE 23rd Street, 

Oklahoma City, OK and 1627 Southwest Blvd., Tulsa, OK 74117. 
 
 

Members present: Dr. Jason Beaman, Ms. Andrea Fielding, Dr. Eric Harp, Dr. Michael Magguilli, Mr. 
Tyler Stiles and Dr. Eric Pfeifer.  
 
Members absent: Ms. Angela Marsee, Mr. Keith Reed and Dr. Doug Stewart.  
 
Others Present: Dr. Josh Lanter (OCME), Madalynn Martin (OAG), Kari Learned (OCME), Elysa Imhoff 
(OCME), Lori Shively (OCME), and Michele Krizan (OCME) 
 
Dr. Harp called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. Roll was called, and a quorum was established.  
Mr. Stiles motioned to adopt the minutes as written from the August 3, 2023, meeting. Dr. Harp second 
the motion. Roll was called and all were in favor.  
 
•2024 meeting dates for the Board of Medicolegal Investigations, Office of the Chief Medical Examiner. 
Dr. Beaman motioned to accept February 1st, May 2nd, August 8th, November 7th as regular OCME 
Board Meeting dates for 2024. Two dates in Tulsa May and November.  Dr. Stiles seconded the motion. 
Roll was called and all were in favor.  
 
•Nomination, discussion, and possible election of the Board Chairman.  
Dr. Harp opened the floor for discussion and nomination for Board Chairman.  After some discussion, 
Mr. Stiles motioned to nominate Dr. Harp as Board Chairman. Dr. Beaman second the motion. Roll was 
called and all were in favor.  
 
•Nomination, discussion, and possible election of the Board Vice Chairman. 
Dr. Harp opened the floor for discussion and nomination for Board Vice Chairman.  After some 
discussion. Dr. Harp motioned to nominate Mr. Stiles to serve as Vice Chairman. Dr. Magguilli seconded 
the motion. Roll was called and all were in favor.  
 
•Update from the Chief Medical Examiner, Dr. Eric Pfeifer. 
~Dr. Pfeifer presented the agency update to the Board.  



 
 
 

2 
 

Dr. Pfeifer announced the overarching priority had been and continues to be National Association of 
Medical Examiners (NAME) reaccreditation. Our strategic plan to move toward the goal of 
reaccreditation as not changed. Name reaccreditation is not easy to obtain, along with keeping said 
accreditation. Our agency lost accreditation in 2009. NAME accreditation prescribes the number of staff 
required relative to case load.  
 
Since the Board last met, Dr. Doel resigned. Starting in July 2024, 3 pathologists (this includes our 
current fellow) will join the Oklahoma City office. With this addition, the Oklahoma City office will be 
fully staffed. Due to the severe shortage of forensic pathologists, some offices are willing to pay very high 
salaries to recruit physicians. Our agency must compete with these salaries to attract applicants. In light of 
the current situation, the OCME physician salaries were increased.  
Dr. Beaman asked Dr. Pfeifer if we lost our accreditation? Dr. Pfeifer stated in 2009 the agency lost 
accreditation due to poor facilities and not enough staff. Obtaining accreditation is not easy and once you 
lose it, it’s difficult to get back. 
 
Fellowship - 
Dr. Abreo has accepted an offer to stay with the agency.  This will be contingent upon successful 
completion of her training. Both fellowship positions have been filled for the 2025. Fellow Interviews for 
Match in 2026 are in progress now.  
 
The agency applied for a NIJ (National Institute of Justice) grant to enhance the fellowship program. 
Unfortunately, we were unsuccessful in obtaining the NJI grant. Funds were provided for advertisement 
and in person attendance to national conferences.  
 
Administration – 
A 3% cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) salary adjustments were given to all administrative staff. We are 
still in the evaluation phase with Case Management System (CMS) regarding the 3rd floor renovation.  
Jerry Thomas was hired as a project manager to help with tasks like building maintenance, car fleets and 
other time-consuming projects.  
 
Permits – 
Due to a survey of what other states agencies are charging for a Cremation or Out of State permits, our 
agency is proposing an administrative rule change to the price of permits. As of right now the cremation 
Permit fee is $200, we are proposing a new fee of $235. This was last reviewed and increased in 2016.  
 
Anthropology –  
Oklahoma is full of shallow, clandestine graves. Unlike many other agencies we have 3 full time 
anthropology on staff. Dr. Pfeifer would like to have one more anthropologist for the Tulsa office. Market 
driven salary adjustments were distributed to all Anthropologists.  
 
Autopsy services –  
The autopsy labs in Oklahoma City and Tulsa have semi-precious terrazzo floors. Oklahoma City’s floor 
is now 6 years old and in need of maintenance.  The Oklahoma City practice has 20,000 sq. ft. of this 
flooring will run approximately $3.00 per square foot. We are in the process of requesting bids for this 
service. 
 



 
 
 

3 
 

We have engaged in a research study to assess the use of the CT along with bedside Randox toxicology 
testing. We will continue the study for another year or so.  Dr. Pfeifer says at this point, the study looks 
very promising. Additionally, we routinely CT and Lodox (x-ray) every decedent.  This reduces the 
waiting time for the pathologists since this process is done when the body is received.     
 
Information Technology –  
At the request of the Governor’s office, each agency is required to assign an AI expert. Franklin Antao 
has been selected to represent OCME.  
 
Investigations –  
The average scene response time has been reduced from 1 hour, 24 minutes to 1 hour and 12 minutes this 
is an average for all 77 counties.   
 
Permit turnaround has also decreased. October 2021, the average was 16 hours 13 minutes. We’re now 
averaging 10 hours and 47 minutes. The goal is 2 business days which we are well within.  
 
Toxicology lab –  
After 2 years, our toxicology lab is now International Organization for Standardization (IOS) accredited. 
With this accreditation we are now 1 of 16 toxicology labs that have joint accreditation with ABFT and 
ISO-17025. Having this ISO accreditation, our toxicology results are now viewed as accurate and will be 
accepted all around the world.   
 
Legislation – 
Dr. Pheifer has not seen legislation which directly affects the OCME. We are always watching for bills 
that might impact the agency. We have requested 1.2 million dollars yearly for the lab, which includes a 
pathologist, anthropologist, and support staff. Again, our agency is proposing an administrative rule 
change to the fee of permits. 
 
Priority project –  
The priority project for the agency has not changed and will continue to be NAME reaccreditation by the 
end of 2025.  
    
Financial update-  
We presently have $7M in unincumbered cash. Dr. Pfeifer proposed the money be used in the following 
manner. Reserve $3M for 2 months payroll expenses. Dr. Pfeifer would like to allocate $2M to the 
toxicology lab and Oklahoma City office expansion. The office expansion will be relatively inexpensive, 
however, the air handling portion in the toxicology lab will be a major expense. We will know more in the 
upcoming weeks as we have additional discussions with all parties. Lastly, Dr. Pfeifer would like to 
reserve $1M for the CMS on the chance the project isn’t completed within the required timeframe.  
    
•Update from the Deputy Chief Medical Examiner, Dr. Josh Lanter 
 
Dr. Lanter voiced his concerns regarding our agency competing with national salaries to attract fellow 
applicants and pathologist. This matter is something that Dr. Pheifer and Dr. Lanter are having 
conversation about. Although, the fellow salary was adjusted, and it did bring some interests. We need to 
be aware of what other agencies are offering. Dr. Doane and Dr. Doel passed their certification examines 
on the first try. A fellow will be starting in July 2024 at the Tulsa Office.   



 
 
 

4 
 

● Discussion, possible action, and possible Executive Session for the purpose of discussing the 
employment, performance, and compensation of Dr. Eric Pfeifer, Chief Medical Examiner, provided 
that any action taken shall be in open session. 
 
A motion was made by Dr. Harp to enter executive session for the purpose of discussing the performance, 
evaluation, and employment of the Chief Medical Examiner. Mr. Stiles seconded the motion, roll was 
called, and all were in favor. 
 
Dr. Harp excused everyone that is not directly involved and announced they would be called back when 
needed. 
 
The meeting room was reopened to the public.  Dr. Harp motioned to exit executive session; Dr. Beaman 
seconded the motion. Roll was called and 
all were in favor. 
 
Dr. Harp announced 2 proposals were discussed during Executive Session.  The Board recommends an 
adjustment to the Chief Medical Examiner’s salary to the maximum as allowable by statute.   
Dr. Harp motioned to increase the salary of the Chief Medical Examiner to the maximum allowable.  Mr. 
Stiles seconded the motion; roll was called, and all were in favor. 
 
Secondly, the Board would like to invite a member of Office of Management and Enterprise Services 
(OMES) to the February 2024 meeting.  They would like a representative to answer questions regarding 
adjustment limitations of physician compensation of the Chief Medical Examiner as the agency head as 
defined by statute.   
 
Dr. Harp motioned to accept the recommendation of the Board to invite a representative from OMES to 
be available during the February 2024 meeting to answer questions regarding limitations of compensation 
by statute.  Dr. Beaman seconded the motion; roll was called, and all were in favor. 
 
New Business -  
No new business. 
 
Dr. Beaman motioned to adjourn the meeting. Dr. Harp seconded the motion. Roll was called and all were 
in favor. The meet was adjourned at 2:41 pm.  
 
 

 
 



OCME Report to the Board of Medicolegal Investigations, February 

2024 

Eric Pfeifer, MD 

 

Foreword 

The following is a reporting format that includes key operational components of the practice and quality 

indicators important to the mission of the OMCE.  New information and data is bolded.  Previous 

relevant material is colored in light gray. 

 

Top Concerns for OCME operation 

1. Hiring and retaining forensic pathologists, and support staffs 
2. Incremental increase in FTE Forensic Anthropologist 
3. Working with Department of Health to make the death certificate process more 

efficient. 
4. Expansion of OKC office and toxicology space. 
5. NAME Re‐accreditation  

 

Physicians 

1. In July 2024 both the OKC and Tulsa offices will be fully staffed. 
2. Two more forensic pathologists want to join us next year. 
3. Open autopsy cases >90 days (excluding anthropology), 1/30/24: 377 
4. Open autopsy cases >90 days (excluding anthropology), August 2023: 368 

 
 

Fellowship in Forensic Pathology 

1. The OCME filled both fellowship slots for FY25.   
2. We have 8 applicants for the following year. 

 

Administration 

1. We are in the Demo Evaluation phase of a new CMS.   
2. We have an extension of approximately 2 years to acquire and implement the CMS. 
3. We have hired a project manager. 
4. We have hired an outside consultant to prepare us for NAME accreditation. 

 

Anthropology 



1. We now have three full time forensic anthropologists on staff and have identified a 
justifiable need for a fourth and have requested funding for that FTE.  
 
 

Autopsy Services 

1. A professional floor company is being sought to clean and repair the OKC floors and 
provide routine floor cleaning and maintenance. 

2. We have engaged in a prospective study to assess the use of CT with bedside tox 
screening. 

 

Information Technology 

1. We are in the demo evaluation phase for a new CMS. 
2. Installment of LIMS and quality control software is ongoing. 
3. Franklin has started process of estimating IT provisioning for the OKC expansion. 

 

Investigations 

1. Scene response elapsed times (average, ALL 2023): 1 hr, 19 min  
Scene response elapsed times (average, August 2023): 1 hr, 13 min. 
Scene response elapsed times (average, April 1): 1 hr., 25m. 
Scene response elapsed times (average, February 2022): 1 hr., 24m. 

2. Permit turnaround times (average, ALL 2023): 12hr., 36 m. 
Permit turnaround times (average, April 2023): 11hr., 12 m. 
Permit turnaround times (average, April 2023): 11hr., 59 m. 
Permit turnaround times (average, May 2022): 12hr., 21 m. 

Permit turnaround times (average, March 2022): 15hr., 56 m. 

Permit turnaround times (average, Oct 2021): 16hr., 13 m. 

3. Drone program, scene vehicles 

 

Toxicology 

1. The tox lab needs more space for personnel and instrumentation. 
2. Focus has shifted to case completion. 

 

Legislative Issues 

1. Strategic planning for FY25…26…27 
 



Priority Projects 

1. Re‐accreditation by the National Association of Medical Examiners; anticipated by    
2025.  ??? 

2. Sensible use of carryover funds for capital projects, etc. 
3. Remodeling of third floor of OKC building. 

 

 

FY24 APPROPRIATIONS 
MONTHLY 
DEPOSITS TOTAL 

TOTAL 
EXPENDITURES 

Carry-Over 
Adjustments Profit/Loss 

July $1,334,929.00  $450,759.00 $1,785,688.00 $1,379,039.51   $406,648.49 

August $1,334,929.00  $491,502.00 $1,826,431.00 $1,841,308.28   ($14,877.28) 

September $1,334,929.00  $369,578.00 $1,704,507.00 $2,045,778.31   ($341,271.31) 

October $1,334,929.00  $426,305.61 $1,761,234.61 $1,739,858.22   $21,376.39 

November $1,334,929.00  $375,352.46 $1,710,281.46 $2,016,018.04   ($305,736.58) 

December $1,334,929.00  $472,019.00 $1,806,948.00 $1,676,065.31   $130,882.69 

January $1,334,929.00           
February $1,334,929.00            

March $1,334,929.00            

April $1,334,929.00            

May $1,334,929.00            

June $1,334,929.00            
 

We have approximately $9.8M in available cash.  Proposed plan: 

  Retain two months payroll ($3M). 

  Retain $1M for emergency equipment needs. 

  Allocate $2M for OKC office/tox expansion. 

  Retain $1M for CMS in case of grant failure. 

  Possibility of revenue failure. 

 

 

END 

 

 


	Agenda FEB 2024.pdf
	Novemeber 2023 mins.pdf
	Board February 2024 Chief .pdf

